
§501-c-9 Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust                     
  A single employer plan sponsored by 
  Truckee Meadows Water Authority  
 

AGENDA 
§501-c-9 Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 

Tuesday, October 20, 2020 at 1:00 p.m.  
Meeting Via Teleconference Only 

 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC MAY ATTEND TELPHONICALLY BY CALLING THE NUMBER LISTED BELOW.  
NO PHYSICAL LOCATION IS BEING PROVIDED FOR THIS MEETING 

(be sure to keep your phones on mute, and do not place the call on hold) 

Phone: (775) 325-5404 
Meeting ID: 430 452 864# 

 
1. Roll call* 

2. Public comment  limited to no more than three minutes per speaker* 

3. Approval of the agenda (For Possible Action) 

4. Approval of the July 21, 2020 minutes (For Possible Action) 

5. Review and approval of Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust calculations for TMWA Retiree 
Mike Halliburton— Rosalinda Rodriguez (For Possible Action) 

6. Review and approval of Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust calculations for TMWA Retiree 
Chris Conte— Rosalinda Rodriguez (For Possible Action) 

7. Review and consideration for approval of request(s) for reimbursement of premiums. —
Rosalinda Rodriguez (For Possible Action) 

8. Review of Actuarial Analysis – Sophia Cardinal* 

9. Revised 2020 Budget – Sophia Cardinal (For Possible Action) 

10. Financial Audit – Sophia Cardinal* 

11. Review of Retirement Benefits Investment Fund (RBIF) performance review—Michele Sullivan* 

12. Discuss Trustee appointments for term January 1, 2021 through December 31, 2022.*--Jessica 
Atkinson 

13. Discussion and possible Trustee direction regarding meeting times and dates for 2021—
Rosalinda Rodriguez (For Possible Action) 

14. Trustee comments and requests for future agenda items* 

15. Public comment    limited to no more than three minutes per speaker* 

16. Adjournment (For Possible Action) 

 

NOTES: 
1. This meeting is being conducted pursuant to the Governor’s Declaration of Emergency Directive 006 (“Directive 006”) 
http://gov.nv.gov/uploadedFiles/govnewnvgov/Content/News/Emergency_Orders/2020/DeclarationofEmergencyDirective00
6reOML.3-21- 20.pdf  

http://gov.nv.gov/uploadedFiles/govnewnvgov/Content/News/Emergency_Orders/2020/DeclarationofEmergencyDirective006reOML.3-21-%2020.pdf
http://gov.nv.gov/uploadedFiles/govnewnvgov/Content/News/Emergency_Orders/2020/DeclarationofEmergencyDirective006reOML.3-21-%2020.pdf


§501-c-9 Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust                     
  A single employer plan sponsored by 
  Truckee Meadows Water Authority  
 

2 The announcement of this meeting has been electronically posted in compliance with NRS 241.020(3) and Directive 006 
at http://www.tmwa.com, and NRS 232.2175 at https://notice.nv.gov/. 
3. Pursuant to Directive 006, the requirement contained in NRS 241.020(3)(c) that physical locations be available for the 
public to receive supporting material for public meetings has been suspended. Staff reports and supporting material for the 
meeting are available on the TMWA website at http://www.tmwa.com/meeting/ or you can contact Rosalinda Rodriguez at 
(775) 834-8294. Supporting material is made available to the general public in accordance with NRS 241.020(6). 
4. The Board may elect to combine agenda items, consider agenda items out of order, remove agenda items, or delay 
discussion on agenda items. Arrive at the meeting at the posted time to hear item(s) of interest. 
5. Asterisks (*) denote non-action items. 
6. Pursuant to Directive 006, public comment, whether on action items or general public comment, may be provided 
without being physically present at the meeting by submitting written comments online on TMWA’s  Public Comment Form 
(tmwa.com/PublicComment) or by email sent to boardclerk@tmwa.com prior to the Board opening the public comment 
period during the meeting. In addition, public comments may be provided by leaving a voicemail at (775)834-0255 prior to 
4:00 p.m. on October 19th. Voicemail messages received will either be broadcast on the telephone call during the meeting or 
transcribed for entry into the record. Public comment is limited to three minutes and is allowed during the public comment 
periods. The Board may elect to receive public comment only during the two public comment periods rather than each action 
item. 

 

http://www.tmwa.com/
https://notice.nv.gov/
http://www.tmwa.com/meeting/
https://tmwa.com/comments-to-the-board-for-april-2020-virtual-meeting/
mailto:boardclerk@tmwa.com


 10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 04 

 
Minutes of the TMWA Post-Retirement Medical Trust Trustees Page 1 of 4 
July 21, 2020  
 

Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
 A single employer plan sponsored by 
  Truckee Meadows Water Authority 
  

 
DRAFT July 21, 2020 MINUTES 

The meeting of the TMWA Post-Retirement Medical Plan and Trust (Trust) Trustees was held on Tuesday, July 
21, 2020 via Teleconference. 
 
Michele Sullivan, Chairman, called the meeting to order at 1:02 P.M.  
   
1. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF PRESENCE OF A QUORUM.  

A quorum was present. 

Voting Members Present: Voting Members Absent 
Michele Sullivan  
Juan Esparza    
James Weingart 
Steve Enos 
 
Members Present Members Absent: 
Jessica Atkinson 
Rosalinda Rodriguez       
Gus Rossi        
Mike Venturino 

 
 
2. PUBLIC COMMENT 

There was no public comment 

3. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the 
Trustees present, the Trustees approved the agenda. 

4. APPROVAL OF THE APRIL 21, 2020 MINUTES 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the 
Trustees present, the Trustees approved the April 21, 2020 minutes. 

  



 10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 04 

 
Minutes of the TMWA Post-Retirement Medical Trust Trustees Page 2 of 4 
July 21, 2020  
 

 

5. APPROVAL OF THE MAY 19, 2020 MINUTES 

 Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the Trustees present, 
the Trustees approved the May 19, 2020 minutes. 

6. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF POST-RETIREMENT MEDICAL PLAN & TRUST CALCULATIONS FOR 
TMWA RETIREE DAVE BUNT 

Ms. Rodriguez presented the benefits calculation for Dave Bunt.  Mr. Bunt will retire on 
10/02/2020 and is requesting trust benefits beginning on 11/01/2020.  Ms. Rodriguez met with 
the retiree and confirmed the information on the benefit calculation form.  He has elected to 
continue on TMWA coverage as Retiree only for medical, dental, and vision coverage. Mr. Bunt 
has elected to have any remaining premium balance paid from his RHS or PERS check. 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the Trustees present, 
the Trustees approved the benefits calculation for Dave Bunt. 

7. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF POST-RETIREMENT MEDICAL PLAN & TRUST CALCULATIONS FOR 
TMWA RETIREE JACK BYROM 

Ms. Rodriguez presented the benefits calculation for Jack Byrom.  Mr. Byrom will retire on 
10/02/2020 and is requesting trust benefits beginning on 11/01/2020.  Ms. Atkinson met with 
the retiree and confirmed the information on the benefit calculation form.  He has elected to 
continue on TMWA coverage as Retiree and Spouse for medical, dental, and vision coverage. 
Mr. Bunt has elected to have any remaining premium balance paid from his RHS or PERS check. 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the Trustees present, 
the Trustees approved the benefits calculation for Jack Byrom. 

8. REVIEW AND CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL OF REQUEST FOR REIMBURSEMENT OF 
PREMIUMS 

 Ms. Rodriguez presented a reimbursement request received for Medicare premiums paid for 
through Social Security. 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the Trustees present, 
the Trustees approved the reimbursement request for premiums for Medicare premiums paid 
for through Social Security. 

Ms. Rodriguez presented a reimbursement request received for Medicare Part B, premiums paid 
for through Social Security. 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the Trustees present, 
the Trustees approved the reimbursement request for premiums for Medicare Part B, 
premiums paid for through Social Security. 



 10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 04 

 
Minutes of the TMWA Post-Retirement Medical Trust Trustees Page 3 of 4 
July 21, 2020  
 

Ms. Rodriguez presented a reimbursement request received for United Healthcare 
supplemental coverage and Prescription drug coverage paid for by the retiree. 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the Trustees present, 
the Trustees approved the reimbursement request for United Health Care supplemental 
coverage and Prescription drug coverage paid for by the retiree. 

Ms. Rodriguez presented a reimbursement request received for United Healthcare premiums 
paid for by the retiree. 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the Trustees present, 
the Trustees approved the reimbursement request for premiums for United Health Care 
premiums paid for by the retiree. 

Ms. Rodriguez presented a reimbursement request received for AARP United Healthcare 
Medicare Supplement plan, RX coverage, and Medicare A& B premiums paid for by the retiree.  
Ms. Rodriguez advised the retiree had provided documentation for more than his trustee credit 
and if the request was approved by the Trustees, it would only be for the credit available to the 
retiree. 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the Trustees present, 
the Trustees approved the reimbursement request for premiums for AARP United Healthcare, 
RX coverage, and Medicare A & B premiums paid for by the retiree up to the allowable 
amount. 

 

9. REVIEW OF ACTUARIAL ANALYSIS 

Sophie Cardinal, Principal Accountant, advised that currently, the actuaries were working on the Dec 
31st, 2019 valuation and actuarial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.  
This report serves three purposes: 

• To value the plan’s liabilities at December 31, 2019, 
• To determine what TMWA should contribute to the plan for fiscal years 20, 21, and 22, 

and  
• To provide information that must be reported in TMWA’s fiscal year 20 financials for other 

post-employment benefits.   
TMWA has not received the final report yet, but have been provided drafts and expect to receive the 
final version sometime this week.  Ms. Cardinal advised the from the drafts she has reviewed, these 
are key numbers:  

• The plan covers 228 active employees and 51 retirees.  
• The total PRMT liability at June 30th, 2020 is $10.1 million, and our net position total is $12.4 

million. Which leaves a net asset of $2.3 million. TMWA’s actuaries determined that for fiscal 
years 2021, and 2022 no new contributions would need to be made. We could choose to take 
a small refund. This has not yet been discussed by management as the final report has not 
been released.  

 
 



 10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 04 

 
Minutes of the TMWA Post-Retirement Medical Trust Trustees Page 4 of 4 
July 21, 2020  
 

10. REVIEW OF RETIREMENT BENEFITS INVESTMENT FUND (RBIF) PERFORMANCE REVIEW 

Ms Sullivan reviewed the Retirement Benefits Investment (RBIF) dated March 31 ,2020.  The 
year to date return was -6.3%. Overall Market return of -6.7%.  The negative return is due to the 
markets performance, but that has been improving recently.  Since inception to date the total 
RBIF Fund and Market return is at a 5.5% return.  The actuary has assumed a 6% return as this is 
what has been approximately earned in the past.  Ms. Sullivan advised there isn’t concern with 
the return rate at this time as the market has been improving and it is still close to the 6% 
assumption.  Ms. Sullivan expects to have the June report for review at the October meeting. 

This is for informational purposes only, no action required. 

11. TRUSTEE COMMENTS AND REQUEST FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS* 

 RBIF review 

 Actuarial analysis final report  

 Audit Review 

12. PUBLIC COMMENT 

There was no public comment. 

 

13. ADJOURNMENT  

With no further business to discuss, Chairman Sullivan adjourned the meeting at 1:18 P.M. 

Minutes were approved by the Trustees in session on _____________. 

Respectfully Submitted,  

 
________________________________________________ 
Rosalinda Rodriguez, Recording Secretary 



10-20-2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 07 A



10-20-2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 07 A



10-20-2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 07 A



10-20-2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 07 B



10-20-2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 07 B



10-20-2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 07 B



10-20-2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 07 B



10-20-2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 07 B



10-20-2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 07 B



10-20-2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 07 B



10-20-2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 07 B



10-20-2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 07 B



10-20-2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 07 B



 
10-20-2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 07 C



 
10-20-2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 07 C



 
10-20-2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 07 C



 
10-20-2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 07 C



10-20-2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 07 D



10-20-2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 07 D



10-20-2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 07 E



10-20-2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 07 E



10-20-2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 07 E



10-20-2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 07 F



10-20-2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 07 F



1

Get Help

Benefit & Payment Details, My Home, my Social Security https://secure.ssa.gov/myCYB/start#paymentHistory

1 of 2 7/26/2020, 8:45 AM

10-20-2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 07 F



Update Direct Deposit

1

Benefit & Payment Details, My Home, my Social Security https://secure.ssa.gov/myCYB/start#paymentHistory

2 of 2 7/26/2020, 8:45 AM

10-20-2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 07 F



  10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda 08 
   

  Page 1 of 1 

Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
  a single employer plan sponsored by 
  Truckee Meadows Water Authority  

 
TO: Board of Trustees of the TMWA Post-Retirement Medical Plan and Trust 
FROM: Sophia Cardinal, TMWA Principal Accountant 
DATE: October 1, 2020  
SUBJECT:     Present and accept the December 31, 2019 actuarial report 
 
 
Recommendation 
TMWA staff recommends the Trustees accept the December 31, 2019 Valuation and 
Development of Actuarially Determined Contributions GASB 75 Actuarial Report for the Fiscal 
Year Ending June 30, 2020 for the TMWA Post-Retirement Medical Plan and Trust (PRMPT).  
Discussion 
The following report is attached:  
 

• December 31, 2019 Valuation and Development of Actuarially Determined Contributions 
GASB 75 Actuarial Report for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020 for the TMWA 
Post-Retirement Medical Plan and Trust (PRMPT)  

 
This report serves three purposes:  
 

• to value the plan’s liabilities at December 31, 2019, 
• to determine what TMWA should contribute to the plan for fiscal years 20, 21, and 22, 

and, 
• to provide information that must be reported in TMWA’s fiscal year 20 financials for 

other post-employment benefits. 
 

Some highlights from the report include: 
 

• The plan covers 228 active employees and 51 retirees. 
• The total OPEB liability at June 30, 2020 is $10,118,664, but net position totals 

$12,444,083. There is thus a net OPEB asset of $2,325,419.  
• As of December 31, 2019, the funded ratio of the plan is 123.0%. As of the last valuation 

date, January 1, 2018, the funded ratio of the plan was 102.2%.  
• The increase in coverage is attributable to continued favorable plan experience, primarily 

from lower-than-expected premiums and retiree costs as well as higher-than-expected 
returns on trust assets. Further, the plan is closed to new entrants. 

• The actuarial report concludes that TMWA will not need to make any additional 
contributions to PRMPT for fiscal year 2020 or any new contributions for fiscal years 
2021 and 2022.  

 



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



  10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda 09 
   

  Page 1 of 1 

Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
  a single employer plan sponsored by 
  Truckee Meadows Water Authority  

 
TO: Board of Trustees of the TMWA Post-Retirement Medical Plan and Trust 
FROM: Sophia Cardinal, TMWA Principal Accountant 
DATE: October 1, 2020  
SUBJECT:     Present and accept the revised budget for calendar year 2020 
 
 
Recommendation 
TMWA staff recommends the Trustees accept the revised budget for calendar year 2020.  
Discussion 
The following report is attached:  
 

• Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust Budget for Calendar Year 2020 
 
The original budget for calendar year 2020 was approved by the Board of Trustees on January 
21, 2020. It included a total budget of $138,578 for Employer Contributions, which represented 
an estimate of the Truckee Meadows Water Authority’s contributions for the year. During the 
first month of the year, TMWA contributed a total of $69,289 to PRMPT.  
 
The December 31, 2019 actuarial report for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020 was issued in 
July 2020. The report concluded that TMWA did not need to make any additional contributions 
to PRMPT for fiscal year 2020. 
 
TMWA staff has therefore revised PRMPT’s calendar year 2020 budget to reflect a decrease in 
Employer Contributions from $138,578 to $69,289. The budgets for all other additions and 
deductions appear to be reasonable when compared with actuals-to-date and were thus left 
unchanged.  
 
 



Original Revised

Additions

Contributions

Employer 138,578$           69,289$            

Plan Members 106,500             106,500            

Total Contributions 245,078             175,789            

Investment Income

Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair value of investment ‐  ‐ 

Investment income 241,100             241,100            

Less investment expenses (2,600)                (2,600)               

Net investment income 238,500             238,500            

Total Additions 483,578             414,289            

Deductions

Benefits paid 442,100             442,100            

Administrative expenses 15,000               15,000              

Total Deductions 457,100             457,100            

Net Increase (Decrease) 26,478$             (42,811)$          

Budget for Calendar Year 2020

Post‐Retirement Medical Plan & Trust

Truckee Meadows Water Authority

K:\OPEB Trusts\Trustees of the Post‐Retirement Trust\Budgets\2020\Budget CY 2020 ‐ PRMPT_Revised.xlsx

10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda 09 A



eidebailly.com

Financial Statements 
December 31, 2019 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority 
Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust

10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda 10 A



Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
Table of Contents 

December 31, 2019 
 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report ................................................................................................................................... 1 

Management’s Discussion & Analysis ........................................................................................................................ 3 

Basic Financial Statements 

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position ...................................................................................................................... 7 
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position ................................................................................................... 8 
Notes to Financial Statements ............................................................................................................................... 9 

Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios ..................................................................... 15 
Schedule of Contributions ................................................................................................................................... 16 
Schedule of Investment Returns .......................................................................................................................... 17 

 
 

10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda 10 A



What inspires you, inspires us. Let’s talk. | eidebailly.com
5441 Kietzke Ln., Ste. 150 |  Reno, NV 89511-2094  |  T 775.689.9100  |  F 775.689.9299  |  EOE

 
 
 
 
 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 
To the Board of Trustees 
Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan and Trust 
Reno, Nevada 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-
Retirement Medical Plan and Trust (the Plan), which comprise the statement of fiduciary net position as 
of December 31, 2019, and the related statement of changes in fiduciary net position for the year then 
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Plan’s basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Plan’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Plan’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of 
the financial statements. 

10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda 10 A



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
fiduciary net position of the Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan and Trust 
as of December 31, 2019, and the changes in the fiduciary net position for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management’s 
discussion and analysis, on pages 3 through 6, the schedule of changes in the net OPEB liability and 
related ratios, the schedule of contributions, and the schedule of investment returns on pages 15 
through 17, respectively, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
 

 
 
 
Reno, Nevada 
October 7, 2020 
 

10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda 10 A



Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
Management’s Discussion & Analysis 

Year Ended December 31, 2019 
 
 
Truckee Meadows Water Authority (“TMWA”) financial management provides the following discussion and 
analysis as an introduction to the basic financial statements and an analytical overview of the Plan’s financial 
activities for the reporting periods ended December 31, 2019 and 2018. This narrative is intended as a 
supplement and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements. 
 
Effective December 13, 2018, TMWA’s Board of Directors adopted a resolution to close the Plan to any 
employees hired on or after December 13, 2018. Existing employees and plan participants currently receiving 
benefits were not impacted by this resolution. 
 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
The Plan’s basic financial statements include the following components: 
 

• Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 
• Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 
• Notes to the Financial Statements 

 
In addition to the basic financial statements, required supplementary information is provided in the following 
schedules: 
 

• Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 
• Schedule of Contributions 
• Schedule of Investment Returns  

 
The Statement of Fiduciary Net Position presents the Plan’s assets and liabilities and the net position, with the 
assets being held in trust for beneficiary postemployment benefits. This statement measures the Plan’s 
investments at fair value, cash and other short-term assets and liabilities as of the year ended December 31, 
2019.  
 
The Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position presents information showing how the Plan’s net position 
changed during the reporting year. This statement includes additions for employer contributions, investment 
income and deductions for payments for the benefit of retirees and administrative expenses for the year ended 
December 31, 2019. 
 
The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of the financial statements and provide additional 
information that is necessary to gain a comprehensive understanding of the data in the financial statements. 
 
The Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios is required supplementary information 
which provides multi-year information about the OPEB liabilities for which the Plan’s assets are held and 
managed.

10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda 10 A



Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
Management’s Discussion & Analysis 

Year Ended December 31, 2019 
 
 
The Schedule of Contributions is required supplementary information which provides multi-year information. It 
contains the actuarial determined contribution as well as the methods and assumptions used to determine 
contribution rates. 
 
The Schedule of Investment Returns is required supplementary information which provides multi-year 
information regarding the rate of return calculated as the internal rate of return on the Plan’s investments, net 
of investment expense. 
 
Financial Highlights 
 
Financial highlights of the Plan as of and for the year ended December 31, 2019 are as follows: 
 

• Operating cash balances at year end were $19 thousand  
• Plan investments at fair value at year end were $12.5 million 
• Net investment income was $2.3 million 
• Employer contributions to the Plan were $139 thousand  

 
Financial highlights of the Plan as of and for the year ended December 31, 2018 are as follows: 
 

• Operating cash balances at year end were $39 thousand 
• Plan investments at fair value at year end were $10.3 million 
• Net investment loss was $0.5 million 
• Employer contributions to the Plan were $223 thousand  

 
Plan Analysis 
 
The following table provides a summary of two years of net position of the Plan: 
 

Change
2019 2018 2019 v 2018

Assets
Cash 18,589$            39,472$            (20,883)$           
Receivables from plan members 8,133                9,576                (1,443)               
Investments, at fair value 12,495,245      10,317,244      2,178,001         

Total assets 12,521,967      10,366,292      2,155,675         

Liabilities
Accounts payable 77,883              21,927              55,956              

Net position restricted for postemployment
benefits other than pensions 12,444,084$    10,344,365$    2,099,719$      

 
 

10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda 10 A



Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
Management’s Discussion & Analysis 

Year Ended December 31, 2019 
 
 
At December 31, 2019, Plan assets of $12.5 million were comprised primarily of investments at fair value of 
$12.5 million. Also included in Plan assets were $0.01 million in Plan member receivables and $0.02 million in 
operating cash. Plan assets increased by $2.2 million as compared to December 31, 2018 due mostly to an 
increase in value in Plan investments. 
 
The following table provides a summary of two years of changes in net position of the Plan: 
 

Change
2019 2018 2019 v 2018

Additions
Net investment (loss) income 2,298,001$      (523,153)$        2,821,154$      
Employer contributions 138,578            222,531            (83,953)             

Total additions 2,436,579         (300,622)           2,737,201         

Deductions
Benefit payments 322,511            253,172            69,339              
Administrative expenses 14,350              27,234              (12,884)             

Total deductions 336,861            280,406            56,455              

Change in net position 2,099,718         (581,028)           2,680,746         

Net position restricted for postemployment
benefits other than pensions

Beginning of year 10,344,365      10,925,393      (581,028)           

End of year 12,444,083$    10,344,365$    2,099,718$      
 

Net position is restricted for future benefit payments to retirees.  
 
As of December 31, 2019, the net position of the Plan was $12.4 million. The Plan net position is essentially 
comprised of assets of the Plan offset by a minor balance of accounts payable. The net position of the Plan 
increased $2.1 million in 2019, or $2.7 million more than a decrease of $0.6 million in 2018. This was primarily 
due to an increase in fair value of investments of $2.2 million in 2019 which was $2.8 million more than a 
decrease in fair value of investments of $0.6 million in 2018 due to higher returns from the investment portfolio. 
Employer contributions in 2019 of $0.1 million were less than contributions of $0.2 in 2018. Benefits paid, net 
plan member contributions, of $0.3 million in 2019 were consistent with benefits paid, net plan member 
contributions, of $0.3 million in 2018.  Administrative expenses were $0.01 million in 2019, slightly lower than 
administrative expenses of $0.02 million in 2018 due to higher audit and legal fees in 2018 related to the Plan 
document restatement. 
  

10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda 10 A



Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
Management’s Discussion & Analysis 

Year Ended December 31, 2019 
 
 
To ensure that funds are accumulated on a regular and systematic basis it is the practice of TMWA to contribute 
the Actuarially Determined Contribution to the Plan regularly and never less than annually. This has ensured that 
the Plan’s assets are sufficient to cover the Total OPEB Liability which is disclosed in Note 4 to the financial 
statements. 
 
Requests for Information 
 
Questions concerning the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information 
should be addressed to Ms. Michele Sullivan, Chief Financial Officer/Treasurer of the Truckee Meadows Water 
Authority at P.O. Box 30013, Reno, Nevada 89509-3013. 
 

10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda 10 A



Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 

December 31, 2019 
 
 
Assets

Cash 18,589$            
Receivables from plan members 8,132                
Investments, at fair value 12,495,245

Total assets 12,521,966

Liabilities
Accounts payable 77,883

Net position restricted for postemployment benefits other than pensions 12,444,083$    

10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda 10 A



Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 

Year Ended December 31, 2019 
 
 
Additions

Investment income
Net increase in fair value of investments 2,021,925$      
Interest and dividends 279,282            
Investment expense (3,206)               

Net investment income 2,298,001         

Employer contributions 138,578            

Total additions 2,436,579         

Deductions
Benefit payments 322,511
Administrative expenses 14,350

Total deductions 336,861            

Net Increase in net position 2,099,718         

Net position restricted for postemployment benefits other than pensions
Beginning of year 10,344,365

End of year 12,444,083$    

 
 

10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda 10 A



Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2019 
 
 
Note 1 -  Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Reporting Entity 
 
The Truckee Meadows Water Authority (TMWA) established a Voluntary Employee Benefit Association pursuant 
to Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Code 501(c) 9 which is referred to as the Truckee Meadows Water Authority 
Post-Retirement Benefit Plan and Trust (the Plan), a single-employer defined benefit other postemployment 
benefit (OPEB) Plan. Tax exempt status was granted by the IRS on May 25, 2007. This Plan provides TMWA 
retirees with postemployment group health, including medical, dental, vision, accidental death and 
dismemberment (ADD), and life benefits. The Plan’s financial reporting period ends December 31, while TMWA’s 
financial reporting period ends June 30. 
 
Basis of Accounting 
 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These statements have also 
been prepared in accordance with the reporting standards as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB), which designates accounting principles and financial reporting standards applicable to 
the Plan.  
 
Use of Estimates in Preparing Financial Statements 
 
The preparation of financial statements is in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America may require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect amounts 
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates. 
 
Investments and Investment Income 
 
Investments are reported at fair value. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Investment 
income includes the Plan's net earnings from its participation in the State of Nevada's Retirement Benefits 
Investment Fund (RBIF), an external investment pool. The Plan's net earnings from the external investment pool 
is based on the Plan's original investment plus a monthly allocation of investment income, including realized and 
unrealized gains and losses, which is the same as the value of the pool shares.  
 
Contributions 
 
Contributions are recognized in the period in which such amounts are owed by TMWA for the OPEB benefits as 
they become due and payable. 
 
Payment of Benefits 
 
Benefits, net of plan member contributions, are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms 
of the Plan.  
 

10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda 10 A



Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2019 
 
 
Administrative Expenses 
 
Administrative expenses are recorded when incurred and payable by the Plan. 
 
 
Note 2 -  Plan Description and Contribution Information 
 
Plan Description 
 
The Plan, a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan was established to provide eligible TMWA retirees with 
postemployment health, including medical, dental, vision, ADD and life benefits. Pursuant to Nevada State 
Administrative Regulations, adopted in September 2008, the Plan will be governed by not less than three but 
not more than five Trustees. Four trustees were appointed by the TMWA Board of Directors, two members from 
non-represented positions and two members from represented employees. The TMWA General Manager has 
been given authority to appoint the two non-represented employee trustees and accept the nomination of 
represented employee trustees by the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW) Local 1245. 
 
Eligibility requirements, benefit levels, and TMWA contributions are established and amended through TMWA’s 
collective bargaining agreement for its represented employees (IBEW) and by the TMWA Board of Directors with 
respect to non-represented Management, Professional, Administrative, and Technical employees (MPAT). 
 
Retiree Healthcare Plan Options 
 
TMWA retirees have the option to enroll in a Preferred Provider Organization or Employer Health Maintenance 
Organization health plans provided by the City of Reno. These plans are the same health plans offered to active 
employees of TMWA. TMWA retirees may choose to participate in a health plan not provided by the City of 
Reno. The amount paid by the Plan for participation in health plans other than those offered by the City of Reno 
are limited to the amount otherwise payable had the participant selected one of the City of Reno plans.  
 
In order to be eligible for benefits, retirees must have at least ten years of credited service with TMWA and must 
be at least 55 years of age. When eligible, retirees must enroll in and pay the cost of Medicare Part B or 
Medicare Part C. Once participants exhaust their medical benefits, they will continue to be eligible for life 
benefits under the Plan. 
 
Life Benefits 
 
TMWA retiree coverage continues at the same coverage amount in force at the time of retirement (one times 
basic annual earnings) until age 70, at which time coverage reduces to one-half of that amount. At age 75, 
coverage is reduced to $2,000. The retiree bears no cost of the premiums for this coverage amount. However, 
retirees do have the opportunity to purchase optional life insurance, the cost of which is paid by the retiree. 
 

10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda 10 A



Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2019 
 
 
Membership of the Plan 
 
As of December 31, 2019, membership of the Plan consisted of the following: 
 
Retirees currently receiving medical benefits 41                         
Retirees currently receiving life benefits 44                         
Retirees entitled to, but not yet receiving benefits 1                           

86                         

Active Plan Members
IBEW members 106                       
MPAT members 84                         

190                       

The Plan is a closed plan that will provide future benefits to eligible TMWA employees. 
 
Contributions and Benefits Provided 
 
TMWA: There are three classifications of TMWA employees eligible for postemployment benefits upon 
retirement from TMWA. TMWA is responsible for a subsidy towards the costs of retiree coverage; the amount of 
which is dependent on the classification of the employee at the time of retirement from TMWA. The classes of 
employees and related TMWA subsidies are as follows: 
 

 Collective Bargaining Unit of the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers group hired on or 
before January 1, 1998: Retirees in this classification receive a benefit as a percentage of the total group 
health premiums, dependent upon credited years of service and their age at retirement. The maximum 
subsidy is 85% of the health care premium with a minimum of 20 years of credited service. Retirees with 
20 or more years of credited service electing the Medicare Risk Contract can receive a subsidy of 100%. 
Retirees may elect the employer-offered medical plan of their choice for themselves and qualified 
dependents. 

 IBEW group hired on or after January 1, 1998 and before December 13, 2018: Retirees in this 
classification will receive a lifetime lump-sum subsidy toward their chosen health coverage and the 
coverage of qualified dependents. The subsidy is a total of $1,250 multiplied for each adjusted Post-
Retirement Medical Plan & Trust year of service. This amount does not grow with interest and once 
exhausted a retiree is responsible for paying the full cost of health premiums.  

 MPAT personnel hired before December 13, 2018: Retirees in this classification are eligible to receive an 
annual subsidy towards the cost of health premiums calculated at $235 multiplied by credited years of 
service, up to 30 years for retirees age 55 through 64; and $105 multiplied by credited years of service 
up to 35 years, for retirees age 65 and above. The subsidy is reduced by 5% for each year or partial year 
that the individual is under age 62 as of his or her retirement date. There is no extra subsidy for spousal 
or dependent coverage. 

 
TMWA shall annually contribute to the Plan an amount which TMWA determines is necessary to fund the 
benefits due pursuant to a qualified actuarial analysis. During the year ended December 31, 2019, TMWA 
contributed $138,578 to the Plan. 

10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda 10 A



Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2019 
 
 
Retirees: Contributions are required for the portion of the premiums and costs in excess of the subsidies 
provided by TMWA as discussed above. During the year ended December 31, 2019, retirees’ share of health 
premiums and costs ranged from $84 to $1,173 a month.  
 
The Plan offers participants Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985 (COBRA) continuation of 
coverage, subject to all conditions and limitations of COBRA. There were no participants utilizing COBRA 
continuation of coverage during the year ended December 31, 2019. 
 
 
Note 3 -  Cash and Investments 
 
At December 31, 2019, the Plan’s carrying amount and bank balance was $18,589. All of the bank balance was 
covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. 
 
The Board of Trustees has established an investment policy for the Plan. Under the policy, the Plan’s assets are 
limited to investments in the State of Nevada’s Retirement Benefits Investment Fund; and any investment 
authorized pursuant to Nevada Revised Statute (NRS) 355.170. Such investments under NRS 355.170 include 
certain “A” rated notes and bonds, guaranteed investment contracts, obligations of the U.S. Treasury, 
obligations of other U.S. Government agencies, negotiable and non-negotiable certificates of deposit issued by 
commercial banks or insured savings and loan associations, bankers acceptances, repurchase agreements, 
"AAA" rated mutual funds that invest in securities of the Federal Government or agencies of the Federal 
Government, and the State of Nevada Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP). 
 
RBIF 
 
The Plan invests its assets in the RBIF as allowed by the NRS 287.017 and the Nevada Administrative Code. The 
RBIF was established pursuant to NRS 355.220 and is administered by the Retirement Benefits Investment Board 
as an unrated external investment pool. The RBIF is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission 
as an investment company. Each participant acts as fiduciary for its particular share of the RBIF and is allocated 
earnings and expenses according to their proportional share in RBIF. Bank of New York, Mellon determines the 
fair value of the RBIF monthly. RBIF is valued at carrying value based on the net asset value (NAV) of the 
observable market prices of the underlying assets within the RBIF. The Plan’s investment in RBIF was 
$12,495,245 at December 31, 2019. Complete financial information on RBIF as of June 30, 2019 can be obtained 
by contacting Public Employees Retirement System at 693 W. Nye Lane, Carson City, NV, 89703.  
 
Investments measured at NAV as of December 31, 2019: 
 

Unfunded Redemption Redemption
Fair Value Commitments Frequency Notice

RBIF 12,495,245$    -$                       Monthly 5 Days

RBIF: This asset class is generally comprised of a combination of fixed income, marketable equity and 
international securities.

10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda 10 A



Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2019 
 
 
For the year ended December 31, 2019, the annual money-weighted rate of return on investments net expenses 
was 1.72%. The money-weighted rated of return expresses investment performance, net of investment expense, 
adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested. 
 
 
Note 4 -  Net OPEB Asset of TMWA 
 
The components of the net OPEB asset of TMWA at December 31, 2019 were as follows: 
 
Total OPEB liability 10,118,664$       
Plan fiduciary net position 12,444,083         

Net OPEB asset (2,325,419)$        

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability 122.98%

Actuarial Assumptions 
 
The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2019, using the following 
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 
 

Inflation 2.50%
Salary increases 3.00%
Investment rate of return 6.00%
Healthcare cost trend rates* 7.00% in 2021

   4.00% ultimate for 2076
and later years

* Healthcare cost trend rate fluctuates each year until ultimate trend rate is reached.

Mortality rates were based on the MacLeod Watts Scale 2018, which was developed by the actuary from a 
blending of data and methodologies found in two published sources: (1) the Society of Actuaries Mortality 
Improvement Scale MP‐2017 Report, published in October 2017 and (2) the demographic assumptions used in 
the 2017 Annual Report of the Board of Trustees of the Federal Old‐Age and Survivors Insurance and Federal 
Disability Insurance Trust Funds, published July 2017. 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2019 valuation were based on actual census data for the 
period December 31, 2017 – December 31, 2019. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was derived from RBIF's rates of return and 
investment policy: 
 

Asset Allocation

S&P 500 Index 50.90%
MSCI World x US Index 21.50%
U.S. Bond Index 26.90%
Cash & Cash Equivalents 0.70%

Asset Class

10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda 10 A



Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2019 
 
 
Discount rate: The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 6.00 percent. The projection of 
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that Plan contributions will be made at rates equal to 
the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB Plan’s fiduciary net 
position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. 
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was applied to all periods of 
projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability. 
 
Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Asset to Changes in the Discount Rate 
 
The following presents the net OPEB asset of TMWA, as well as what TMWA’s net OPEB asset would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.00 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher 
(7.00 percent) than the current discount rate: 
 

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(5.00%) (6.00%) (7.00%)

Net OPEB asset (1,126,452)$     (2,325,419)$     (3,343,906)$        

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Asset to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 
 
The following presents the net OPEB asset of TMWA, as well as what TMWA’s net OPEB asset would be if it were 
calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower (6.00 percent decreasing to 3.00 
percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.00 percent decreasing to 5.00 percent) than the current healthcare 
cost trend rates: 
 

Healthcare Cost
1% Decrease Trend Rate 1% Increase

(6.00% (7.00% (8.00%
decreasing to decreasing to decreasing to

3.00%) 4.00%) 5.00%)

Net OPEB asset (3,169,394)$     (2,325,419)$     (1,317,083)$        

 
Note 5 -  Subsequent Events 
 
Subsequent to year-end, the United States and global markets experienced significant volatility in value resulting 
from uncertainty caused by the world-wide coronavirus pandemic. The Plan’s management is closely monitoring 
its investment portfolio and its liquidity and is actively working to minimize the impact of the volatility. The 
Plan’s financial statements do not include adjustments to fair value that have resulted from the volatility. 
 

10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda 10 A



eidebailly.com

Required Supplementary Information 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority 
Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust

10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda 10 A



Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 

Last Ten Years* 
 
 

2019 2018 2017
Total OPEB liability

Service cost 307,252$          295,437$          284,073$          
Interest 682,186            648,751            612,850            
Differences between expected and actual experience (2,013,876)       -                         -                         
Changes of assumptions 301,774            -                         -                         
Benefit payments (442,363)           (355,168)           (264,699)           

Net change in total OPEB liability (1,165,027)       589,020            632,224            

Total OPEB liability - beginning 11,283,691      10,694,671      10,062,447      

Total OPEB liability - ending (a) 10,118,664$    11,283,691$    10,694,671$    

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer 138,578$          222,531$          445,063$          
Net investment income 2,298,001         (523,153)           1,510,048         
Benefit payments (322,511)           (253,172)           (264,699)           
Auditing fees (12,600)             (18,545)             (15,500)             
Administrative fees -                         (3,439)               (517)                  
Legal fees (1,750)               (5,250)               (19,268)             
Retiree contributions in 93,673              117,015            93,172              
Retiree contributions out (93,673)             (117,015)           (93,172)             

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 2,099,718         (581,028)           1,655,127         

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 10,344,365      10,925,393      9,270,266         

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) 12,444,083$    10,344,365$    10,925,393$    

TMWA's net OPEB (asset)/liability - ending (a) - (b) (2,325,419)$     939,326$          (230,722)$        

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB
liability 122.98% 91.68% 102.16%

Covered-employee payroll N/A N/A N/A

TMWA's net OPEB (asset)/ liability as a percentage of 
covered-employee payroll N/A N/A N/A

N/A - OPEB plan is not based on a measure of pay.

* GASB Statement No. 74 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until ten years of data
is available, the Plan will present information only for those years for which information is available.  

 
Notes to Schedule: 
 
Changes in benefits: Effective December 13, 2018, TMWA’s Board of Directors adopted a resolution to close the 
Plan to any employees hired on or after December 13, 2018. 
 
Changes of assumptions: Mortality tables were updated from MacLeod Watts Scale 2017 to MacLeod Watts 
Scale 2018; and the medical trend model was updated from combined sources, Nevada Public Employee Benefit 
Plan along with other healthcare trends, to the Getzen healthcare trend model. 
 

10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda 10 A



Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
Schedule of Contributions 

Last Ten Years* 
 
 

2019 2018 2017

Actuarially determined contribution 174,095$          291,480$          364,973$          
Contributions in relation to the actuarially

determined contribution 138,578            222,531            445,063            

Contribution deficiency (excess) 35,517$            68,949$            (80,090)$           

Covered-employee payroll N/A N/A N/A

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll N/A N/A N/A

N/A - OPEB plan is not based on a measure of pay.

* GASB Statement No. 74 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until ten years of data
is available, the Plan will present information only for those years for which information is available. 

 
Notes to Schedule: 
 
Valuation Date: Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31, 2019.  
 
Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates are as follows: 

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal cost
Amortization method Level percent of pay
Amortization period 25 years, closed
Asset valuation method Market value of assets
Inflation 2.50%
Salary increases 3.00%
Healthcare cost trend rates* 7.00% in 2021

     4.00% ultimate for 2076 and later years
Investment rate of return 6.00%
Retirement age 45-75
Mortality Mortality rates were based on the

     MacLeod Watts Scale 2018, a custom 
     table developed by the Plan's actuary

* Healthcare cost trend rate fluctuates each year until ultimate trend rate is reached.
 

Other information: In the 2018 and 2017 actuarial valuation, mortality rates were based on the MacLeod Watts 
Scale 2017 and the healthcare cost trend rates for medical were based on combined sources, Nevada Public 
Employee Benefit Plan along with other healthcare trends. 
 

10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda 10 A



Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
Schedule of Investment Returns 

Last Ten Years* 
 

2019 2018 2017
Annual money-weighted rate of return,

net of investment expense 1.72% -0.38% 15.53%

* GASB Statement No. 74 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until ten years of data
is available, the Plan will present information only for those years for which information is available. 

 

10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda 10 A



  10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda 10 
   

  Page 1 of 1 

Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
  a single employer plan sponsored by 
  Truckee Meadows Water Authority  

 
TO: Board of Trustees of the TMWA Post-Retirement Medical Plan and Trust 
FROM: Sophia Cardinal, TMWA Principal Accountant 
DATE: October 1, 2020  
SUBJECT:     Present and accept the December 31, 2019 audited financial statements 
 
 
Recommendation 
TMWA staff recommends the Trustees accept the December 31, 2019 audited financial 
statements of the Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan and Trust 
(the Plan).  
Discussion 
The following report is attached:  
 

• December 31, 2019 Financial Statements of the Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-
Retirement Medical Plan and Trust 

 
The plan received an unqualified audit opinion, which means that the independent auditor 
believes the financial statements are fairly and appropriately presented and that they are in 
compliance with generally accepted accounting principles.  
 
The Plan’s basic financial statements include the following components:  
 

• Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 
• Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 
• Notes to the Financial Statements  

 
In addition, required supplementary information is provided in three additional schedules.  
 
Some highlights of the Plan’s report as of and for the year ended December 31, 2019 include: 
 

• Operating cash balances were $18,589. 
• Plan investments at fair value were $12,495,245. 
• Net investment income, including realized and unrealized gains and losses, was 

$2,298,001. 
• Employer contributions to the Plan were $138,578.  
• Net position totaled $12,444,083, which was a $2,099,718 increase from the prior year.  



Asset Class Market Value
Target 

Allocation

Actual 

Allocation

FYTD 

Return
One Year 3 Years 5 Years 10 Years

Since 

Inception 

(2008)

U.S. Stocks- S&P 500 Index 320,925,118$     50.5% 53.2% 7.4% 7.4% 10.7% 10.7% 14.0% 9.1%

Market Return 7.5% 7.5% 10.7% 10.7% 14.0% 9.0%

Int'l Stocks- MSCI World x US Index 134,021,105$     21.5% 22.2% -4.8% -4.8% 1.1% 2.3% 6.3% 2.0%

Market Return -5.4% -5.4% 0.8% 2.0% 5.7% 1.8%

U.S. Bonds- U.S. Bond Index 146,239,458$     28.0% 24.2% 10.2% 10.2% 5.5% 4.1% 3.6% 3.9%

Market Return 10.2% 10.2% 5.5% 4.0% 3.4% 3.8%

2,657,641$     0.0% 0.4%

Market Return 6.0% 6.0% 7.4% 7.1% 9.2% 6.5%

7.3% 6.5%

Retirement Benefits Investment Fund
June 30, 2020

Preliminary Performance

Total RBIF Fund 603,843,322$     100.0% 100.0% 6.7% 6.7% 7.7% 9.3%

10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda 11



10/20/2020 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 12  

  Page 1 of 1 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 

TO: Board of Trustees 
FROM: Rosalinda Rodriguez, HR Coordinator 
DATE: October 20, 2020 
SUBJECT: Discussion and direction regarding meeting times and dates for 2021 
 

Recommendation  
TMWA staff recommends that the Board of Trustees provide input on the schedule proposed for 
the TMWA §501-c-9 Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust meetings as well as confirmation of 
meeting times. 
 
Discussion  
The regular schedule for the TMWA §501-c-9 Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust meetings 
has traditionally been quarterly on the third Tuesday of the month.   
 
Staff recommends continuing with the current reoccurring schedule as follows:   
 
2021 Trustee Meeting Dates Proposed 
Tuesday, January 19  1:00 p.m. 
Tuesday, April 20  1:00 p.m. 
Tuesday, July 20  1:00 p.m. 
Tuesday, October 19  1:00 p.m. 
 
 
  
 
 


	2020.10.20 PRMT Agenda
	2020.10.20 PRMT 04 Minutes of July 21st meeting_draft
	DRAFT July 21, 2020 MINUTES

	2020.10.20 PRMT 07_A Reimbursement request
	2020.10.20 PRMT 07_B  Reimbursement request
	2020.10.20 PRMT 07_C Reimbursement request
	2020.10.20 PRMT 07_D Reimbursement request
	2020.10.20 PRMT 07_E Reimbursement request
	2020.10.20 PRMT 07_F Reimbursement request
	2020.10.20 PRMT 08 Staff Report_PRMPT Actuarial Valuation
	2020.10.20 PRMT 08 TMWA PRMPT Signed Dec 2019 Val Rpt (Funding & FYE 20 GASB 75)_FINAL___
	2020.10.20 PRMT 09_A Staff Report_PRMPT Revised Budget for Cal Year 2020
	2020.10.20. PRMT 09_B Revised Cal Yr 2020 Budget
	2020.10.20 PRMT 10_A Final Signed Report
	2020.10.20 PRMT 10_B Staff Report_PRMPT 06.30.20 Audited Financials
	2020.10.20 PRMT 11 RBIF-Investment-Performance_06.30.20
	2020.10.20 PRMT 12 Discussion and direction on possible meeting times 2021



